
Site Inventory Form State Inventory No. 22-01342  New    Supplemental 
State Historical Society of Iowa  Part of a district with known boundaries (enter inventory no.) 22-01381 
(December 1, 1999)  Relationship:   Contributing     Noncontributing 
  Contributes to a potential district with yet unknown boundaries 
 National Register Status:(any that apply)  Listed   De-listed   NHL   DOE 
 9-Digit SHPO Review & Compliance Number       
  Non-Extant  (enter year)        
 

1.  Name of Property 

 
historic name   Regan and Witt Building 
 
other names/site number   Poull and Bink; Binkôs Mercantile; Grahamôs Department Store, Burlingameôs Department 
Store; Raizes Department Store; JL Subs; Subway;  Clayton County Extension 
 

2.  Location 

 
street & number 120  South Main Street 
 

city or town Elkader   vicinity,    county Clayton  
 
Legal Description: (If Rural) Township Name Township No. Range No. Section Quarter of Quarter 
                            
 (If Urban) Subdivision Original Town Block(s)   5         Lot(s)  SE 2/3 OF LOT 3     

3.  State/Federal Agency Certification [Skip this Section] 

4.  National Park Service Certification [Skip this Section] 

5.  Classification 

Category of Property (Check only one box) Number of Resources within Property     

   building(s) If Non-Eligible Property If Eligible Property, enter number of: 
   district Enter number of:  Contributing Noncontributing 
   site    buildings 1      buildings 
   structure    sites          sites 
   object    structures         structures 
     objects          objects 
    Total  1      Total 
 
Name of related project report or multiple property study (Enter ñN/Aò if the property is not part of a multiple property examination). 
Title Historical Architectural Data Base Number 

Arch. & Hist. Resources of the Elkader Downtown Historic District MPD 22-030 

6.  Function or Use 

Historic Functions (Enter categories from instructions) Current Functions (Enter categories from instructions) 
 
02E09 Furniture  Store 02A01 Office Building 
 
02F04 Department Store 02G01 Café  
 
            
 

7.  Description 

Architectural Classification (Enter categories from instructions) Materials (Enter categories from instructions) 
 
No Style foundation 04 Stone 
 
      walls 03 Brick 
 
      roof 08 Asphalt 
 
      other            
Narrative Description (  SEE CONTINUATION SHEETS, WHICH MUST BE COMPLETED) 

8.  Statement of Significance 
Applicable National Register Criteria (Mark ñxò representing your opinion of eligibility after applying relevant National Register criteria) 

 Yes  No  More Research Recommended A Property is associated with significant events. 

 Yes  No  More Research Recommended B Property is associated with the lives of significant persons. 
 Yes  No  More Research Recommended C Property has distinctive architectural characteristics. 
 Yes  No  More Research Recommended D Property yields significant information in archaeology or history. 



County Clayton Address 120 South Main Street Site Number 22-01342 

City Elkader District Number 22-01381 
  
Criteria Considerations 
  A Owned by a religious institution or used  E A reconstructed building, object, or structure. 
 for religious purposes.  F A commemorative property. 
  B Removed from its original location.  G Less than 50 years of age or achieved significance within the past 
  C A birthplace or grave.  50 years. 
  D A cemetery 
 
Areas of Significance (Enter categories from instructions) Significant Dates 
 Construction date 

02 ARCHITECTURE 1895   check if circa or estimated date 

 Other dates 

05 COMMERCE            
 
Significant Person Architect/Builder 
(Complete if National Register Criterion B is marked above) Architect 

                      
  Builder 
                      

Narrative Statement of Significance (  SEE CONTINUATION SHEETS, WHICH MUST BE COMPLETED) 

9.  Major Bibliographical References 

Bibliography   See continuation sheet for citations of the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form  

10. Geographic Data 
UTM References (OPTIONAL) 
 Zone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing 

1                 2                          
3                 4                          
 
  See continuation sheet for additional UTM references or comments 

11. Form Prepared  By 

 

name/title  Marlys Svendsen, Svendsen Tyler, Inc. 

organization  City of Elkader date 7/2011 

street & number  N3834 Deep Lake Road telephone 715/469-3300 

city or town  Sarona state WI zip code 54870 

ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTATION (Submit the following items with the completed form) 

FOR ALL PROPERTIES 
1. Map: showing the propertyôs location in a town/city or township. 
2. Site plan: showing position of buildings and structures on the site in relation to public road(s). 
3. Photographs:  representative black and white photos.  If the photos are taken as part of a survey for which the Society is to be 

curator of the negatives or color slides, a photo/catalog sheet needs to be included with the negatives/slides and the following 
needs to be provided below on this particular inventory site: 

Roll/slide sheet #       Frame/slot #       Date Taken       
Roll/slide sheet #       Frame/slot #       Date Taken       
Roll/slide sheet #       Frame/slot #       Date Taken       

  See continuation sheet or attached photo & slide catalog sheet for list of photo roll or slide entries. 
  Photos/illustrations without negatives are also in this site inventory file. 

FOR CERTAIN KINDS OF PROPERTIES, INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING AS WELL 
1. Farmstead & District: (List of structures and buildings, known or estimated year built, and contributing or non-contributing status) 
2. Barn: 

 a. A sketch of the frame/truss configuration in the form of drawing a typical middle bent of the barn. 
 b. A photograph of the loft showing the frame configuration along one side. 
 c. A sketch floor plan of the interior space arrangements along with the barnôs exterior dimensions in feet. 

State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) Use Only Below This Line 

Concur with above survey opinion on National Register eligibility:  Yes  No  More Research Recommended 
    This is a locally designated property or part of a locally designated district. 
 
Comments:   
 
Evaluated by (name/title):     Date:   
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7. Description: 
 
This building is estimated by the Clayton County Assessor to have been built in 1905.  However, the 
June 1895 Sanborn Map identifies the building as a furniture store ñbeing built.ò Newspaper accounts 
and advertisements date the building as completed in 1895 also.   
 
The Regan and Witt Building at 120 South Main Street was originally built as an Italianate Style 
commercial building with a symmetrical, double-wide front façade with brick walls and stone trim, and a 
bracketed embossed metal cornice and sign board.  The 2-story building had a furniture store on the 
first floor and two flats for the owners above.  Parts of the first floor including the placement of doors 
leading to separate stairs on each side of the building, and the decorative I-beam between floors 
remain.  The balance of the store front and the upper level were substantially damaged during the 
November 1958 tornado including destruction of the cornice, pulling off some of the outer layer of brick 
on the front, and damage to all of the display windows.  Following the tornado, the upper floor was 
refaced in a solid color brick and new windows were installed in the original spacing though not the 
original height or window style.  No cornice design was maintained.  The present storefront was 
installed in 1995 and includes plate glass shop windows with lower bulkheads, a recessed central 
entrance with doors into each shop space, and no transoms.  A column set at the entrance between the 
two spaces is wrapped in metal with an embossed design.  It does not appear in historic photos and its 
location in a non-structural position suggests it was moved to this location from the buildingôs interior.     
   
 
8.  Significance: 
 
The Regan and Witt Building at 120 South Main Street was built in 1895 as a downtown furniture and 
undertaking business and later became a department store.  Following the tornado of 1958, the front 
façade was rebuilt.  The building continues retain its scale and massing with its façade demonstrating 
the rebuilding effort following the tornado and a subsequent storefront redesign to more closely match 
the original appearance.  The district derives significance under both Criteria A and C.  Under these 
criteria, the districtôs commercial buildings are associated with the historic contexts developed for the 
downtown in the ñArchitectural and Historical Resources of the Elkader Downtown Historic Districtò 
Multiple Property Documentation form covering the years 1846 to 1960.   
     
Elkader Downtown Historic District Background: 
 
The town of Elkader was laid out in 1846 along the banks of the Turkey River approximately 16 miles 
upstream from the Turkey Riverôs confluence with the Mississippi River.  The town was surveyed and 
laid out in 1846 with the Original Town Plat filed in June 22, 1846by Timothy Davis, Chester Sage and 
John Thompson, friends and business partners, who  began operating a sawmill on North Front (Main) 
Street in 1845 before the town was even platted.  By 1849 they had a successful flour mill in operation.   
The new town was named for Abd el-Kader, an Algerian freedom fighter and world figure who was 
admired by Davis.   The principal building stimulating development in the 1840s and 1850s was the 
Elkader Mill.  After 1860 when the Clayton County voters selected Elkader as the permanent county 
seat, the downtown saw a variety of merchants set up shops, several hotels open, a number of 
newspapers begin publication, and small manufacturing concerns get underway in the city center.  
Elkader numbered 440 residents in 1860. 
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The new county court house saw its first section completed in 1869 opposite the downtown.  New 
limestone buildings were erected along both North and South Main Street with public halls frequently 
located on upper floors.   During the 1870s and 1880s 2-story brick buildings began replacing frame 
business houses.  A permanent railroad connection was completed by the Chicago, Milwaukee and St. 
Paul RR in 1886 but service remained poor as Elkader was located at the end of a spur rather than 
along a main line route.  A more important transportation improvement during the 1880s was the 
completion of the Keystone Bridge across the Turkey River in 1880.  Its completion prompted a period 
of economic vitality and community investment.  The community was officially incorporated two years 
later in 1891 and a new waterworks system and city well were completed in 1896.  Electricity was 
rejected by locals until the end of the decade in 1900, however.  In the meantime, new churches were 
built in 1897 for the Congregationalists on the east side of the river and in 1897-1899 for the Catholics 
on the west side of the river Coupled with a series of major fires during the 1890s, the downtown saw a 
period of rebuilding with a new hotel and bank at the entrance to the business district at the turn of the 
century.  The new opera house was completed on North Main Street while other 2 and 3-story brick 
blocks appeared both north and south of Bridge Street.   
 
By 1900, Elkaderôs population stood at its peak of 1,321 ï an increase of 77 percent during the decade 
of the 1890s.  Development continued in the downtown before and after World War I but at a much 
slower pace.  Floods and fires damaged the Elkader Mill in 1902, 1906 and 1908, but it was 
nevertheless rebuilt by Schmidt Brothers & Co., retaining a key employer and anchor for Elkaderôs 
downtown.  The business district began to extend to the west before and after the war with the principal 
changes seen along West Bridge Street.  Here livery stables and wagon shops were replaced by 
automobile dealerships, implement companies and filling stations.  Five stations eventually located 
along West Bridge with a sixth one block to the south along First Street SW.  The national economic 
depression of the 1930s was coupled by the closing of the Elkader Mill in 1939 following a major fire.  
Natural disasters after World War I included major floods in 1922, 1947, and 1958 with a tornado 
destroying section of South Main Street in 1958 as well.   
 
Despite these natural and human made disasters, Elkader saw steady but modest population growth 
from 1,223 in 1920 to 1,526 in 1960.  The impact of the automobile was seen in traffic patterns, parking 
patterns, and traffic signs and the introduction of electricity saw several generations of street lighting 
come and go.  The popularity of the opera house waned and the first floor became the municipal fire 
station while two movie houses came and one stayed in the downtown drawing evening crowds for 
entertainment and shopping.  As many as 130 people resided in downtown flats during this period.  A 
good system of inter and intra-state highways connected Elkader and its downtown to other parts of the 
state and country in a way that railroads had never served the community.  By 1960, downtown Elkader 
was well-established as one of several geographically dispersed retail centers serving Clayton County.  
Virtually every storefront was filled with start-up businesses or multi-generational family stores as 
Elkaderôs downtown achieved a stable and healthy status for local and countywide residents.    
 
Historic Background for the Regan and Witt Building at 120 South Main Street: 
 
The Regan and Witt Building at 120 South Main Street was built in 1894-1895 for Regan and Witt, 
furniture dealers and undertakers.  Michael Regan originally started a furniture and undertaking 
business as a member of the firm Kruse and Regan in 1888.  The following year William E. Witt 
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purchased Kruseôs interest and the firm of Regan and Witt was formed.  The construction of a new 
$6,000 building in 1895 marked a period of growth for the firm.  The building was unique in Elkader in 
the fact that both of the large 8-room flats were occupied by the co-owners of the business, each flat 
outfitted with the appointments of standard house.  In 1896, the building sustained considerable 
damage in the fire that destroyed the Clark House hotel and three other frame buildings on South Main 
Street.  Newspaper accounts credit the newly constructed fire wall of the Regan and Witt Building as 
preventing the fire from spreading down the block. The building Regan and Witt continued in this 
location until ca.1900 when the business was sold to L.F. Gossman.  He later sold the business back to 
Regan and Witt and they relocated to North Main Street.  
 
In 1914 the building at 120 South Main Street was sold to Poull and Bink, a department store located 
next door at 126 South Main Street.  Previously, L.M. Bink and M.J. Poull of Milwaukee, had acquired 
the Charles Leibrock general merchandise store located at 103 North Main Street.  They continued the 
business at that location until 1908 when they relocated to 126 South Main Street.  In 1912 with 
acquisition of the much larger Regan and Witt Building, Poull and Bink saw their business expand to 
become one of the largest department stores in Clayton County.  In 1937, the department store was 
reorganized as Bink Mercantile under management of L.M. Bink until his death in 1948.  By then, his 
children, son, Alfred M. and a  daughter, Marion, were  both involved in the business.  In 1957, Bink 
Mercantile closed and the space was leased to Grahams Department Store.  Grahams continued after 
the tornado of 1958 did considerable damage to their space and in 1961 the space was leased to 
Burlingameôs Department Store.  In 1967, the last of the department stores to occupy the space took 
over ï Raizes Department Store.   
 
In 1977, the building opened as a mini-mall with a series of stores in the building.  One was Briesô 
Fashion and Fabric Store, which took over the entire building by the mid-1980s.  The business closed 
in 1991 and Mary Bries sold it two years later to John Baker who completed a major rehabilitation of the 
building.  In 2011 the building is owned by Lonnie and Jane Achenbach.  Tenants include J.L. Subs and 
the Clayton County Extension Service. 
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Record of Owners/Occupiers  (compiled by research volunteers with the Elkader Historical 
Society/Carter House Museum) 
 
1840 ï 1850: First frame house built by Chester Sage.  It was called the ñbeehiveò; it was a boarding 
house and store.  Later owned by John Stroble. 
 
1895: Present building built by Regan and Witt ï Furniture and Undertaking 
 
1900: Purchased by L.F. Gossman 
 
1914: Poull and Bink Department Store 
 
1937: Bink Mercantile 
 
1957: Grahamôs Department Store 
 
1958: Tornado damaged the store; third floor removed. 
 
1961: Rented and used by Burlingameôs  
 
1967: Raizesô Department Store 
 
1977: Briesô Fashion and Fabric 
 
Late 1990ôs: Subway 
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Business Journal, 1895 (from research files of Elkader Historical Society/Carter House Museum) 
 

REGAN & WITT.  In May, 1892, this firm, composed of M. Regan and Wm. Witt, 
succeeded to the business of Kruse, Regan & Witt in the handling of furniture.  They 
soon after purchased the Strobel property, on which stood the old building well known 
for years as the Bee Hive.  Early this spring they prepared plans and commenced the 
erection of a building, which is shown on this page.  The store is 44 feet wide and 80 feet 
deep, with 14 feet ceiling.  The front is fully lighty by four large plate glass show 
windows, with two entrances.  In the cellar, which is under the entire building, are 
apartments for storage, furnace, etc.  The second story is finished as two flats, 
containing eight rooms each with 11 feet ceiling.  Two stairways in front and two in the 
rear lead to and from these flats, which are occupied as dwellings by Messrs. Regan & 
Witt.  Here their families are very nicely and comfortably situated, with plenty of light 
from front and rear and by sky-lights.  Everything pertaining to a modern house is to be 
found here. 
 
The contract for the foundation walls was completed by John Stoops; the brick work was 
laid by a Dubuque firm; the majority of the brick was manufactured by Chas. Lei, of this 
township.  The carpenter work was by Michael Jensen and his men.  The gravel roof 
was put on by outside parties.  The building cost something over $6,000. 
 
But to return to the store proper.  There is none like it in the county and few in such cities 
as Dubuque.  It has about 3,500 square feet of floor space and on it can be found 
everything in the line of household furniture, from the plainest to the daintiest.  It is 
needless to mention all the various articles, as only an inspection can satisfy.  It is filled 
with goods, and they are overflowing into the warehouse, 24 by 40 and two stories high 
in the rear. 
 
This firm also has a fine hearse and are equipped to do undertaking in all its branches.  
We can only quote the poet in saying: 
 

At Regan & Wittôs there is displayed 
The largest stock found in the trade 
Of every grade and latest style 
At which the ladies well may smile 
 
For drawing room and parlor, too 
And chamber furniture you view 
In dazzling brightness there they stand 
Fresh from the makerôs master hand 
 
Full line of tables, rockers chairs ï  
How many wish that they were theirs! 
With mirrors, mattresses and stands 
For ladiesô work or washing hands. 
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And lounges, foot stools all complete 
In fabrics fine upholstered neat 
The work is good, the price is fair 
You cannot get the like elsewhere 
 
A book case would be nice indeed 
To keep the books you wish to read 
Or writing desk with many drawers 
Or they can show you escritoires 
 
Then fit your house with comforts bright 
From Regan & Wittôs furniture store 
With best and latest furniture 
Well suited to every floor. 

 
March, 1896 Elkader Register (from research files of Elkader Historical Society/Carter 
House Museum) 
 
ñéIt looked for a time as if the new brick building of Regan and Witt was doomed to go 
with the rest and many wondered where the end of it would be.  Fortunately the strong 
fire wall, although itself seriously damaged, stemmed the storm of fire.  It could not 
prevent, however, the flames licking around and entering a second story front window 
and entering the part occupied as a residence by Wm. Witt, which was damaged to the 
extent of $125 by fire and water.  The plate glass front of the north end of  the store were 
all broken, and the damage to stock is estimated at $320, and to building $100.ò 
 
 
March 6, 1919 Elkader Register (from research files of Elkader Historical 
Society/Carter House Museum) 
 
ñMichael Regan Passes Away: Michael Regan passed away at his home in Elkader 
about noon on Friday, February 28.  The news came as a shock to many of his friends 
who were not aware of his serious condition. 
   
The deceased was born March 14, 1852, in Clermont County, Ohio, and came to 
Clayton County, Iowa, with his parents in 1854, living on a  farm in Boardman township.  
On October 17, 1854, he was united in marriage to Miss Kathryn Uriell, in Algona, Iowa.  
There are three daughters and one son to assuage the motherôs bereavement.  One 
daughter Margaret, preceded the father to the great beyond, December 6, 1907.  The 
surviving children are Ruey R., Catherine E., John F., and Dolores D. Regan, all of 
whom are at home. 
   
Michael Regan was one of the oldest of the active business men of Elkader, having 
started the furniture and undertaking business here as a member of the firm Kruse and 
Regan in 1888.  The following year Wm. E. Witt purchased Mr. Kruseôs interest and the 
firm of Regan and Witt was formed, continuing until about 1900 when the business was 
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sold to L.F. Gossman.  After a brief retirement Mr. Regan again entered the furniture 
business and in a few months formed a partnership with Mr. Gossman.  In a few years 
Mr. Gossman sold his interest to Mr. Witt and the firm of Regan and Witt came into 
existence again to be continued to the present time. 
   
Mr. Regan will be sorely missed by his associates in business as his dry kindly humor 
was greatly enjoyed by all and he was always ready to bear his part of the burden in all 
movements for the benefit of the community. 
   
It is difficult for one who has know Mr. Regan to express in words an appreciation of his 
character.  It is the more arduous because the dominant characteristic of his life was 
utter simplicity and modesty.  It is easy to be ostentatious for those who so desire and 
the passing of such men always impresses their community; but the simple childlike faith 
and confidence in his fellow men and his friends and his warm sympathy makes him 
more  universally mourned.  Men who have known him from childhood say he was a 
man who had no enemies.  He had his opinions and frankly expressed his views 
regardless of whether or not they may have pleased his hearers, yet they were always 
tempered with kindness and sympathyéò 
 
 
September 13, 1928: Clayton County Register (from research files of Elkader 
Historical Society/Carter House Museum) 
 
ñLONG TIME RESIDENTS ARE CALLED ñHOMEò- William E. Witt - Tuesday, 
September 11th, marked the passing of one of Elkaderôs prominent business men ï one 
who had been active in the business circles  here for about thirty-seven years ï William 
E. Witt.  He passed away here at his home, the result of paralysis, after a lingering 
illness of about two years. 
   
William E. Witt was born February 24th, 1855 at Preimen, Germany, the son of John and 
Dorothea (Mueller) Witt.  Deceased came to this country and to Clayton county in 1868 
and the trip across the waters was accompanied with hardships such as we little know of 
now.  It required six months to make the trip on a sailing vessel.  While en route the ship 
sprang  a leak and for two days and nights all hands on board stood by the pumps so 
that the ship could be returned to England for the necessary repairs.  A second sailing 
was made and a second time the ship sprang a leak, returning to England for repairs.  
Following this all refused to set foot on the boat again and another ship was taken for 
America. 
   
Mr. Witt received his education in Germany and in America but he  learned his trade as a 
cabinetmaker here in Clayton county.  December 21st, 1878, at Clayton Center, this 
county, Mr. Witt was united in marriage with  Miss Amelia Krieg and to this union four 
children were born, three sons and one daughter, namely: George, Otto (deceased), 
William and Alta (Mrs. Louis Busching). 
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Besides the widow, deceased is survived by two sons, George of East Chicago, Ind., 
William of Elkader and Mrs. Louis Busching, of Nashua, Iowa and also six grandchildren: 
Lucille Witt, Richard Busching, William, Elizabeth, Donald and Marjorie Witt [Marge Witt 
Costigan, local historian].  Three sisters also survive: Mrs. August Uecker, Mrs. Jacob 
Reinhart and Mrs. Frank Hochaus, all of Elkader.  Since coming to America Mr. Witt has 
lived in Volga, Elkport and Postville besides the forty years residence here in Elkader, 
thirty-seven of which were in active business life; as a cabinet maker, furniture and 
undertaking, from which he retired in 1924. 
   
Besides being active in business circles Mr. Witt was active also in church and fraternal 
work.  He was a charter member of the Evangelical  Friedens Church and for many years 
a member of its choir, and always a  regular attendant so long as health permitted.  For 
thirty-four years he was a Mason, always a member of Elkader Lodge No. 72 A.F. & 
A.M.  During  this time he was a Master for several years and passed through all the 
stations of that organization.  No one man in Elkader has had the knowledge of Masonry 
and its teaching as has Mr. Witt.  Besides the Masonic lodge he also held membership in 
the Woodman and Yeomen lodges and in all these  he held the highest esteem of 
brothers.  His place in the community will be hard to fill.ò 
 
 
August 18, 1937: Clayton County Register(from research files of Elkader Historical 
Society/Carter House Museum) 
   
ñBink Mercantile Co. takes over business of Poull and Bink; established here Nov., 1899. 
   
After serving Elkader and Clayton County for a period of nearly 38 years the firm of Poull 
and Bink has been dissolved and the business is now being operated by a new firm to 
be known as Bink Mercantile Company. 
   
M.J. Poull and L.M. Bink came to Elkader on Nov. 1, 1899, to establish the firm of Poull 
and Bink operating a general store in the Leibrock building, now occupied by Mrs. 
George Katschkowsky.  Before coming to Elkader Mr. Poull had been engaged in a store 
in Cedarburg, Wis., while Mr. Bink was a traveling salesman for Geo. H. Hiseman and 
Co. of Milwaukee. 
   
This firm continued in this same location until June 1, 1914, when the stock was moved 
to what was then known as the Regan and Witt Furniture store building, the building 
having been acquired by Poull and Bink. 
   
This move was only the beginning of an expansion program of a  business which was 
soon to develop into the largest department store in Clayton County. Extensive 
improvements were made in the building proper and the building extended to the alley 
line on the west. 
   
About a year later an adjoining building to the south was acquired and for a number of 
years this building housed the shoe department. 
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Three years ago this coming  October a general remodeling program was inaugurated 
and the entire store rearranged along the lines of modern department stores. 
 
The grocery department was moved to the part formerly housing the shoe department 
[126 South Main Street] and the latter department was given a convenient place in the 
main part of the store.  
 
The store has grown with Elkader during these more than 37 years and both the Poull 
and Bink families have developed large circles of friends who will be pleased to know 
that both expect to remain residents of our  community. Mr. Bink will assist the 
department store while Mr. Poull expects to join with his son Vincent in ladies ready to 
wear clothes with headquarters in Chicago.   
 
AN APPRECIATION to the PEOPLE OF ELKADER AND VICINTY: 
  
As you have doubtless either heard or read, we have withdrawn from the partnership of 
Poull and Bink, and are no longer associated with the store.  We take this opportunity of 
extending our grateful thanks to our  friends for the support and custom that they have 
given us over a long period of time. 
   
For 37 years, we have been a part of the business and community life of Elkader and 
vicinity, and it is not easy to sever ties of such long standing.  In fair weather and foul, in 
prosperity  and adversity, during all of these  years we have tried to do our part in the 
upbuilding of Elkader and Clayton County, tried to be good citizens and to carry our 
share of the burdens. 
   
We hope that one of the several business opportunities that we now have under 
advisement will materialize, so that we can continue to live in Elkader. 
 
For all of the favors, friendships and courtesies of this long span of years, our only hope 
is, that we have merited them, and we do want all of you to know how sincerely grateful 
we are.  Your friends,  MR. AND MRS. M.J. POULLò 
 
 
September 1, 1937: Clayton County Register (from research files of Elkader Historical 
Society/Carter House Museum) 
 
ñBink Sale Draws Large Crowds, Even Attracting Buyers From All Parts of County 
 
Crowds literally thronged to the ñReorganization Saleò of the Bink  Mercantile Company, 
which opened at nine oôclock last Wednesday morning.  The sale attracted shoppers 
from every corner of the county, and  in several cases from adjoining counties.  Attracted 
by the slashed prices on all merchandise, new as well as old, and a number of extra 
special offers, one of the largest crowds ever to take advantage of bargains here was on 
hand as the sale opened. 
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The new company, swamped by buyers, wishes to apologize to the public for the 
inability of the large clerical force to wait on the customers  with the courteous treatment 
and comfort the management desired, but was prevented because of the huge crowds in 
attendanceéò 
 
 
1948 ï November 11: Clayton County Register (from research files of Elkader 
Historical Society/Carter House Museum) 
 
ñL.M. Bink Died Sunday, Pneumonia - L.M. Bink, 79, died at his home in Elkader Sunday 
noon after having been a semi-invalid for two and one-half years.  The Elkader 
merchant, who was in business here for nearly 50 years, had felt somewhat improved in 
health for several days and had voted in the general election Tuesday.  However, he 
developed pneumonia suddenly Tuesday evening and his  condition rapidly became 
worseé 
   
Mr. Bink came to Elkader in 1899 and became associated with M.J. Poull in the Poull 
and Bink department store.  At one time the firm had three  stores in Clayton County, 
operating in Volga and Clayton Center in addition  to the store in Elkader. The 
partnership was dissolved with the retirement of Mr. Poull in 1936, and Mr. Bink 
organized the Bink Mercantile company.  The store will be starting its 50th year in 
Elkader next January.  
   
Active in sponsoring civic activities and improvements, Mr. Bink also served on the 
Elkader town council and was influential in having the first  paving laid on the streets 
here. He was deputy grand knight of the Knights of Columbus, and previous to coming 
to Elkader held an office in the Catholic Knights of  Wisconsin, of which he was a 
member for 60 years.  Before he came to this locality, Mr. Bink had traveled out of 
Milwaukee, through northern  Wisconsin and Michigan, for a fur company. 
   
Associated with their father in the business are a son, Alfred M. and a  daughter, Marion.  
Their other sons and two daughters also survive.  They are: Dr. Edward, Utica, N.Y.: 
Walter P., Great Falls, Mont.; LeRoy M., Hollywood, Fla.; Mrs. Blanche Hulser, Hannibal, 
Mo.; and Mrs. Rose  Marie Juds, Milwaukee, Wis.  One sister, Mrs. Catherine Poull, 
West Bend, Wis., also survives.  Mrs. Bink died in 1944. 
 
   
May 28, 1959: Clayton County Register (from research files of Elkader Historical 
Society/Carter House Museum) 
 
ñGrahams Completes Remodeling, Grand Opening May 27 through 29 
 
Graham Department store has just completed their remodeling and clean-up brought 
about by the tornado which swept Elkader November 17 of last year.  Jim Rea, the store 
manager, has announced that the event will be celebrated by a store-wide sale starting 
Wednesday, May 27, through Friday, May 29.  The Graham store has had extensive 
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changes made to the outward appearance of the store building.  New Color Wall in a 
light green shade has been used to reface the existing front.  A new sign has been 
installed over the store lobby.  The display windows have been changed to reflect the 
latest in display design for a junior department store.  The island window has been 
removed and the ceiling of the lobby replaced.  The window bulkheads have been 
recovered with brick and the windows themselves have been improved with new lighting 
and framing.  In all, the new front not only adds to the appearance of the store but is one 
more step in improving the downtown business districtôs appearance. 
  
A picture of the new store front appears to the left.  It is located in the Bink building on 
South Main street in Elkader.  The interior of the store has been completely repainted.  
The tornadoôs effects left the walls streaked with dirt that the winds seemed to suck from 
behind the metal ceiling.  A new row of fluorescent light fixtures has been installed to 
bring the illumination level up to todayôs standards in store lighting.  Rearrangement of 
the fixtures and merchandise has also been accomplished to facilitate greater ease in 
customer shopping. 
 
Jim Rea, the manager of the Graham store in Elkader, had rather a stormy reception to 
Elkader.  He had arrived there to assume direction of this store less than 30 days prior to 
the tornado.  From then until now he as been busily at work repairing the damage done 
by 20 seconds of wind and rain.  Besides the immediate work necessary in cleaning up 
the dirt and debris, Mr. Rea has had to replace the merchandise damaged by the storm.  
This replacement is no small task when you consider the thousands of items carried in a 
store of this size and type. 
  
Mr. Rea came to Elkader from the Graham store in Maquoketa, where he served as an 
assistant manager.  Prior to that he was located in Leon, Iowa, with the Graham 
organization.  His wife, Shirley, two brothers, John and Joe, and his son Timmy live at 
808 Carter N.W., Elkader. 
  
The Graham Department Store was opened in Elkader in 1954.  The store occupies the 
location formerly housing the Bink Mercantile Co.  The Graham Department Stores 
Company operates 22 other stores throughout the state of Iowa.  The company was 
founded in 1916 by C.L. Graham in Ottumwa.  Mr. Graham saw the opportunity to bring 
to the people of Iowa popular priced merchandise for the whole family at a savings 
through group buying practices.  R.E. Stewart, president of the company, states, ñWhile 
styles and types of merchandise have changed since the days of our founding, we still 
operate under the same guiding principle of providing the best possible merchandise for 
the family at reasonable prices.  We hope that the people of the Elkader area will find the 
remodeled Graham store better suited to their family shopping needs.  We want to do 
our part in a growing and better community.ò 
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Additional Information: 
 
Full Legal Description: Original Town of Elkader, SE 2/3 OF LOT 3 BLK 5. 
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Photographs:  Historic view of 100 block, west side of South Main Street, ca. 1900, with Niemeyer Building at the 
corner, looking northwest (Elkader Historic Photograph Collection (digital), Elkader Public Library);  Regan and 
Witt Advertisement, ca. 1895 (Elkader Historical Society/Carter House Museum Collection) 
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Photographs:  Historic view at left following 
tornado, November 2, 1958, Clayton County 
Register 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Historic view below following repairs: May 28, 
1959, Clayton County Register:  
 
ñGrahamôs department store, located on south 
Main street in Elkader, proudly presents a new 
face to its customers.  Erection of a new sign 
above the plate glass show windows last week 
completed the ñnew look.ò  The front of the 
store was heavily damaged by the tornado that 
hit Elkader last November and repair work has 
been in progress much of the time since.  The 
front wall has been redesigned and new plate 
glass windows have replaced the old display 
arrangement.  The interior of the store has also 
been brightened with a new paint job.ò 
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Photographs:  120 South Main Street, looking west and street view, looking southwest (Elkader 
Downtown Survey Photograph, 10/29/2010, Marlys Svendsen, photographer) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


